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I. CALL TO ORDER:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Good evening. I'm Shean Atkins,

Chair of the East Point Planning & Zoning Commission and the time is

upon us and so at this moment, I will call our April 19th meeting to

order. Staff, would you please do Roll Call quorum.

II. ROLL CALL:

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Rene.

COMMISSIONER RENE: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Here.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Fann.

COMMISSIONER FANN: (No response.)

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Atkins.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Present.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Here.

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: (No response.)

MS. HOLMES: Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Here.

MS. HOLMES: Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. In lieu of a prayer, this

Body recognizes is Moment of Silent so at this time, we will have a

Moment of Silence.

III. MOMENT OF SILENCE:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. Would every one

please stand for our Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. Commissioners, before

we adopt the agenda, I'd like for us to make a few changes, if you

will. One, I'd like for us to move a Special Presentation up on the

agenda and the other is I believe we've been contacted by the

applicant for Case Number 2012"P" as in Paul-001-03, that is Duke

Realty. As you all remember from our Work Session the applicant

was requested to be at the Sun Valley Community meeting tonight

and so I'd like to move them up on the agenda before we take up the

Willingham Drive case number, if that is okay. And if that is, at this

time, I will entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I move we alter our agenda to

include our presentation and move Case Number 2012P-001-03 to

the top of our agenda.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved and

properly seconded that we adopt the agenda as modified. All in favor
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sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The agenda is adopted as modified.

V. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you, Commissioners. I

would like to ask our Former Zoning Attorney, attorney Susan Garrett

if she would please come forward, please.

(Whereupon Former Attorney Susan Garrett approaches the

podium.)

VI. SPECIAL PRESENTATION:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Attorney Garrett, this certificate is

awarded to you in recognition for your committed service and valued

expertise to the City of East Point's Planning & Zoning Commission

for three years. Your guidance as the Commissioner's zoning

attorney from 2009 to 2012 fostered our continued adherence to all

ordinances, policies, regulations and procedures adopted by City

Council with respect to zoning related matters. This is presented

today, April 19th, 2012, signed by myself, Shean Atkins as the Chair

of the Commissioner as well as Linda Sheldon as Vice Chair and we'd

like to present this to you and thank you for all of your assistance.

(Whereupon the Commissioners and audience applaud.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: And if you have a few words that
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you'd like to give us, I guess parting words, if you would step to the

microphone. We'll be happy to hear from you at this time.

ATTORNEY SUSAN GARRETT: I'm gonna miss everybody a

lot. I've been saying for three years that this is the good "gig" in

East Point so it's hard to give it up but I know you're in great hands

with Linda and I wish you all the best. I am moving on to the City of

Atlanta Law Department so you know where to find me if you need

me. Thanks so much.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. I'll say that Cathy

Hampton will be happy to have you as will the whole City of Atlanta

so good luck in your new opportunity, Attorney Garrett. Thank you

again. Commissioners, at this time, I will entertain a motion as it

relates to the approval of our March 15, 2012 meeting minutes.

VII. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES:

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I move we approve the minutes

as written for the March 15th, 2012 meeting of the Planning and

Zoning Commission.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon and properly seconded by Commissioner Washington that

we approve the minutes from our March 15th, 2012 minutes. All in

favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The meeting minutes are approved. We will then move directly into

New Business.

VIII. NEW BUSINESS:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: And as I stated earlier, we would

hear first, Case Number 2012 "P" as in Paul-001-03. This particular

Agenda Item, I believe, requires a public hearing and at this time, I

will read the rules for public hearings.

(Whereupon the Rules for Public Hearing are read to the

viewing audience.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Public hearings before the Planning

and Zoning Commission shall be conducted in accordance to Section

10-2219 of the East Point Zoning Code and Development Regulations

as follows: Persons both favoring and opposing the proposed

amendment will then be provided an opportunity to address the

Commission. The applicant for the proposed zoning item, if any, will

be entitled to speak first followed by other speakers in favor of the

proposal for a total of fifteen (15) minutes. Those who oppose the

proposed case amendment or zoning items will then be permitted to

speak for a total of fifteen (15) minutes. By a majority vote, the

Commission may increase the total time for speakers provided that

each side is given the same amount of time. If there is more than

one speaker for a side, the presiding officer may limit the time
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allotted to each individual speaker other than the zoning applicant.

The zoning applicant may reserve a portion of his or her allotted time

for rebuttal. Speakers must adhere to the rules of decorum and prior

to speaking, each speaker shall identify himself or herself and state

his or her current address. Each speaker shall speak only to the

merits of the proposed zoning item decision which is under

consideration, shall address remarks only to the Commission and

shall refrain from making personal attacks on another speaker. The

presiding officer may refuse a speaker the right to continue if after

first being cautioned the speaker continues to violate the rules of

decorum. Commissioners, at this time, I will entertain a motion to

open the public hearing for Case Number 2012 "P" as in Paul-001-03.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I would like to make a motion to

open a hearing on Case Number 2012P-001-03.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there is second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Tucker that we open a public hearing and seconded by Commissioner

Wares. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.
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The public hearing is now open. Is the applicant present for this

particular Case Number?

AUDIENCE: (Response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Would you please step to the

podium. Give your name and your current address, please.

(Whereupon Applicant Sandra Reeves of Duke Realty

approaches the podium.)

SANDRA REEVES: Sandra Reeves with Duke Realty. Home

address?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Your current address, Ms. Reeves.

Sandra REEVES: 3715 Davinci Court, Peachtree Corners,

Georgia.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. You may good ahead and

present your case.

SANDRA REEVES: Okay. A have a couple of boards here.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

SANDRA REEVES: Okay. These boards show Camp Creek

Business Center. Camp Creek Business Center is Duke Realty's -- it's

actually, in all of the country, it's one of our flagship parts. It's about

550 acres. We've done so well here in the City with our

development. We've got about 5 million square feet that we can

build. We've built about half of it over the last ten (10) years and

we're growing so what we're asking for here is -- we're going through

the platting process. We're building more road. We've got

thirty-three hundred (3,300) feet of road that we're gonna put in
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hopefully this summer and like I said, we're starting the Preliminary

Plat process to reserve the right-of-way, put the road extension in

and it's gonna connect at the end of the part now, go directly south

for about fifteen hundred feet (1,500) feet and then go directly's to

connect to Washington Road. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Are there any other

proponents for this Case Number?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there anyone else that would

like to speak in favor of this particular Agenda Item?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Seeing none, I will call any

proponents -- any opponents I'm sorry for this particular Case

Number. Is there anyone here that would like to speak against this

Case Number?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Anyone here that would like to

speak against this case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, Commissioners, at

this time, I will entertain a motion to close the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER WARES: So move.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: There is a second?

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Reported By:
Jeanene Harper

(404) 228-8807 Office

12

Wares and seconded by Commissioner Mallory that we close the

public hearing for Case Number 2012 "P" as in Paul-001-03. All in

favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now closed. Staff, if you would please sound

your recommendation.

MS. HOLMES: Case Number 2012P-001-03. Applicant is Duke

Realty Limited Partnership. Description is a Preliminary Plat for a

Roadway Dedication of the North Commerce Road Extension. Staff

recommendation is approval.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, you've heard the

recommendation from Staff. At this time, I will entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I move we approve Case

Number 2012P-001-03, Preliminary Plat for Roadway Dedication

North Commerce Road Extension.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved and seconded --

it's been moved by Commissioner Sheldon and seconded by

Commissioner Tucker that we approve Preliminary Plat on Case



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Reported By:
Jeanene Harper

(404) 228-8807 Office

13

Number 2012 "P" as in Paul-001-03. Is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: No discussion?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I just wanted to clarify that the

closure of -- it's Campbell -- Campbell Drive is going to be per City

Council approval.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Is there correct?

SANDRA REEVES: The closure of Campbell Drive?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Isn't that the road that you're

going to -- a portion of it will be abandoned.

SANDRA REEVES: A portion of it will be abandoned and we're

basically moving the cul-de-sac that exist today --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay.

SANDRA REEVES: -- just moving it a few feet -- a few

thousand feet south but the abandonment process will go through --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Through City Council.

SANDRA REEVES: -- Staff process, yeah --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay.

SANDRA REEVES: -- for particular road abandonment.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay. Great. I just wanted to

make sure it went on record. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Ms. Reeves, I have a question.
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With a road extension, I did not hear this in your presentation. Are

there any benefits to the road extension? For instance, would it ease

any congestion of any of the businesses and make it before traffic

flow in that area? If so, could you please speak to that.

SANDRA REEVES: That -- yeah, the reason we're doing this is

for traffic relief 'cause everybody knows Campcreek Parkway and

North Commerce Drive -- well, Campcreek and 285 -- that whole area

is pretty well congested morning and afternoon and we constantly

get notes, email from our tenants and they want to fix -- and we

have a pact hear to fix it and it will definitely improve traffic -- relieve

traffic on Campcreek Parkway.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. All right. Is there any other

discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved and properly

seconded that we approve. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

Thank you. The next Case Number is 2012 "Z" as in zebra-004-03

and this particular location is 1304 Willingham Drive. It's a rezoning

from R1A to C1. At this time, Commissioners, I will entertain a

motion to open up the public hearing. Please keep in mind that the

rules that I've read earlier for public hearings would apply to this
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particular case as well.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I would move we open a public

hearing on Case Number 2012Z-004-03.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Tucker and seconded by Commissioner Sheldon that we open a

public hearing for Case Number 2012 "Z" as in zebra-004-03. All in

favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now open. Is the applicant for this particular

Case Number present?

APPLICANT: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Would you like to speak to

your case?

APPLICANT: (Nods head for yes.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Please come to the podium. State

your full name and your current address.

(Whereupon Applicant Roger Fisher approaches the podium.)

ROGER FISHER: My name is Roger Fisher. I'm with Recast
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Design Group and Recast, LLC representing Adel Kazough the owner

of 1304 Willingham Drive property. We proceed with an application

to rezone the property from Urban Residential to Neighborhood

Commercial. He's intent is to stay with the existing use and prior

projects or businesses at the location and we're open to any of your

questions at that location. It's gonna be basically a none invasive

commercial property. I think the last property owner was a heating

and cooling operation and he intends to have the same process at

that location. He will not bring in heavy equipment. Only in the

mornings the truck will come in and load up and there will not be any

trucks at the site on that -- overnight, there will be no overnight

business, no traffic as far as retail so it will be pretty much as the last

owner of the property and at this time, we'd like to entertain any of

your questions at this point.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Mr. Fisher, questions will

not be appropriate at this time. It's just a public hearing so we will

hear from you. Once there's a motion, we can then have discussion

if any Commissioners have a question at that time. They will ask you

a question.

ROGER FISHER: Okay.

MS. HOLMES: The applicant has thirteen (13) minutes and

thirty-seven (37) seconds remaining.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you. Are there any

other proponents for this Case Number that would like to speak?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any other proponents?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Seeing none, I'll will ask if

there are any opponents for this Case Number who've sign up and

would like to speak?

AUDIENCE: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. All right. Do you have the

cards, Staff.

MS. HOLMES: No, sir.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: No cards. Okay. If you will just

come to the podium and make sure that you give Staff your card.

(Whereupon Opponent Bryan Herring approaches the

podium.)

BRYAN HERRING: Good evening. I'm Bryan Herring of 1307

Egan Way here in East Point. Tonight I come to you and I speak on

behalf of forty (40) households and forty-two (42) individuals against

the rezoning of 1304 Willingham Drive as gathered together and the

petition in my hand. The following may points illustrate our

neighbors' top concerns and express why we're adamantly against

the proposed rezone. Egan Park is residential. It is bordered by but

does not include commercial establishments within the neighborhood

boundaries. The turnaround and revitalization of Egan Park was

attributable to it's residential re-designation some years ago. Where

Egan Park borders commercial properties, the properties are

unsightly not well maintained and prior developers have certainly not
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upheld beautification plans and renderings they prepared for our

neighborhood association. There is already an abundance of

available and affordable unused commercial property in East Point.

Commercial rezoning of property would negatively impact

surrounding residential property values in an already deteriorated

housing market. In regards to 1304 Willingham, the subject

property, the entrance faces is residential street and faces residential

properties where children play daily. The subject property is located

fifty (50) feet away from homes bordered on three sides. It has the

potential, the subject property, by nature of the proposed commercial

zoning designation for creating undue noise to neighbors on all three

sides, whether with the current owner or with future commercial

owners. The definition of the C1 Designation is too broad. The

subject property could be flipped and used for such businesses as

retail, eating establishment, group residents and clubs such as legion

halls. The type of establishment on the property would be

commercial with no potential to be residential in the future. The

property values of surrounding residential properties would likely be

reduced, the turn, producing revenue for the City of East Point and

increasing the chances of residents moving. This in turn would

diminish the atmosphere and charm of our neighborhoods. For these

reasons, we speak out against the rezone.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you Mr. Herring. Are there

any other opponents to this Case Number that is signed up to speak?

AUDIENCE: (Nods head for yes.)
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Staff would you please call

the next speaker.

MS. HOLMES: Paul Limbaugh.

(Whereupon Opponent Paul Limbaugh approaches the

podium.)

PAUL LIMBAUGH: Excuse me. My name is Paul Limbaugh

and I live at 1311 Egan Way, East Point, Georgia. The City that I live

on is the cul-de-sac that's directly across the street from the subject

property and my concern is -- better stated and prepared by my

neighbor Bryan but, 'um, as he allude to in his comments that there

are children that play day on a daily basis and in and out of that

street and, you know, the potential of a commercial property and

what it could become -- or more of my concerns is I have long term

plans to stay in East Point and living there and raising a family there.

So I have kids that -- I have a kid and one on the way that go up and

down that street daily and so I would prefer not to see a commercial

entity or a piece of property that could become who knows what in

the future, I think, is my main concern with that property is what

could happen so I think that it was well pointed out that the value of

the houses around that piece of property could definitely diminish if it

becomes commercial property and then, therefore, you having

people wanting to vacant houses that maybe have lost so much value

they can't see reason to keep the house so, you know, we're all

under water over there, I think, and I think that a commercial

property, you know, kind of adds to the trouble that we're already
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seeing so I hope you guys will -- you guys and ladies will consider

keeping it a residential property because -- and actually I think it

would be a great piece of land to divide up maybe into two plots and

put a couple of houses and finish out the neighborhood there. So

thank you for your time.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All right. Thank you,

Mr. Limbaugh. Staff, would you please call the next speaker.

MS. HOLMES: Grendel Clark.

(Whereupon Opponent Grendel Clark approaches the

podium.)

GRENDEL CLARK: Good evening. I'm Grendel Clark. I live

on 3327 Pennsylvania Street in East Point, Georgia directly across the

street from the said property. 'Um, I think I kind of echo the same

comments that, 'um, my neighbors, 'um, both Bryan Herring and also

Paul Limbaugh stated. 'Um, I moved to East Point almost seven (7)

years ago and I bought in the neighborhood because of the

neighbors, the warmth that we have, the re-gentrification of East

Point, the community continuity, the fact that we see children playing

outside everyday, riding their bikes and things like that and, you

know, to allow for a commercial property to come into our

neighborhood would, in my opinion, result in a mass exodus of our

neighbors, myself and some of our other neighbors included. 'Um,

like, said, I live clearly across the street from the property. 'Um, I

don't wish to see a commercial property there. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you, Ms. Clark. Staff, would
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you please call the next speaker if there are any other opponents.

MS. HOLMES: The last speaker is Ms. Sue Davis.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Ms. Davis would you please

approach the podium. Give your name and your current address.

(Whereupon Opponent Sue Davis approaches the podium.)

SUE DAVIS: Yes. My name is Sue Davis. I live at 1309 Egan

Way. 'Um, I also live on the cul-de-sac that is right -- the property is

at the opening of the cul-de-sac or at the end of -- however you want

to say it.

MS. HOLMES: Ma'am, could you speak directly into the

microphone.

SUE DAVIS: Oh, I'm sorry. 'Um, so -- as some of my

neighbors have said, there are so many empty commercial lots on

Willingham Drive within a mile or two miles that I don't really see a

need for this and I'm also adamantly opposed because of what I feel

like it would do to our neighborhood. We have children, like they

said, from one, 'um -- one senior and just on our street -- a senior in

high school all the way down to a newborn baby, to pregnant

mothers on the street. It's just a great place. We had neighbors

over the other night for dinner and they liver in Virginia Highlands.

They said, we just haven't seen a neighborhood like this and

everybody is on the porches. All the neighborhoods stop by and say

hi. They were just so impressed and they just said, you just don't

see this anymore. This is just amazing and really we fell into it. We

didn't know it was going to be so great but we love it and I would
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just hate to see anything happen to it. I do feel like that having a

commercial development right at the end of our cul-de-sac would,

you know, really affect the neighborhood and I just would hate to

see that and I just, 'um -- we really hope that you will consider our

feelings on this and that it is our home where our children grow up.

Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you, Ms. Davis. Staff, are

those all the speakers?

MS. HOLMES: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. At this time, as stated in the

rules of the public hearing, the applicant has, I believe, thirteen (13)

minutes and a few seconds for rebuttal so at this time, you're not

required to rebut but if you would like to rebut some of the

comments that have been made, you should approach the podium.

(Whereupon Roger Fisher approaches the podium.)

ROGER FISHER: I just wanted to make a few remarks to

address some of the issues that were raised by the, 'um,

homeowners in the area. 'Um, as I stated in the opening remarks

that the facility will be, 'um, used as a designation-type business.

There is not gonna be a large amount of volume of traffic coming

through there. It's not a retail site where your gonna have

customers coming in and out. They basically would load up in the

morning the items that they need for the day. You'll have three or

four trucks leaving in and out in the morning and, 'um, very none

invasive to the community as far as traffic flow. That's one thing we
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want to stress. It's not gonna be a huge volume of traffic. 'Um,

there will not be any after-hours where children potentially would be

playing in the evenings that could be a potential problem. We also

wanted to address, 'um, the beautification. The owner has agreed to

do some planting along Pennsylvania to soften up, 'um, that area

coming into the facility. 'Um, it's kind of going back something to the

community. Do some plantings to soften up, basically, what has

been, you know, a large parking area of gravel that lead -- he could

put a privacy fence up, soften that up with some -- and it would be

very none invasive to the community and we feel it would be an

asset. We're not basically changing what has been going on in the

past and we're actually gonna beautify that area and our thoughts as

well is it's basically been abandoned for many many years and the

owner will maintain this facility, 'um, maintain it from that point of

view. Keep it from being abandoned, to me, would be a major issue.

'Um, if he leaves that facility, we're left -- and you, you know,

basically, there's nobody to maintain it unless the community pitches

in to do that. So those are some of the points that we wanted to

make that it would be a used property, none invasive, something that

has been utilized basically for the same type of business that when

he wants to put it -- has been used in the same regard in the past

and people moved into that area in the past and that's pretty much

where we stand and I just wanted to address those issues and

concerns of the community.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Fisher. How



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Reported By:
Jeanene Harper

(404) 228-8807 Office

24

much time does the applicant have, Staff.

MS. HOLMES: Eleven (11) minutes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Eleven (11) minutes.

(Whereupon Applicant Adel Kazough approaches the podium.)

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: How are you all?

COMMISSIONERS: Good.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: I'm Adel Kazough owner of

1304 Willingham Drive and, 'um, I just want to express to you all that

I have no intention of bringing any kind of destruction in the

neighborhood or to bring the value of the neighborhood down. I'm

planning to come in and make the neighborhood a prosperous place.

Making a business that's fruitful. It's just a heating and refrigeration

business. I don't need to obtain clients. I go to my clients. The only

thing that would be happening down there will be an office. I'll have

two ladies there working there in the morning. The van comes in. I

got through vans that come and get their calls and their parts and

they gone for the day. So it will not be like, you know, having traffic,

people coming in and stuff like that. That's not the purpose of that

place. I bought into this property with the intention the property was

commercial or it is commercial property. I did not know it was

already rezone. Well, finally learn later on that property was

grandfathered in and if it sat over a year, it was going back to the

rezoning. That's what happened to the property. I don't know if you

all have seen the property but it have a big old billboard on the

property that's leased by a CVS. The power having been turned off
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this property. Where I understood that this property if the utility got

turned off at this property, then it would rezone to the residential.

Having been turn up, this property have been active. Having

contract on this property with the billboard, CBS did bring the people.

They renting it from me right now. I have a contract on it. So I'm

proud of East Point right now. I bought into that property. I have no

intention of going down there and doing anything to destroy the

neighborhood or anything. I'm coming in -- in fact, I'm looking for a

house in the neighborhood to buy so with that being said, I mean, I

hope they would take into consideration that I'm proud of this

neighborhood, too. Thanks.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you Mr. Kazough.

Commissioners, at this time, I will entertain a motion to close the

public hearing for Case Number 2012 "Z" as in zebra-004-03.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: So moved.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved by

Commissioner Bryant that we close the public hearing and seconded

by Commissioner Washington. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the public hearing is

now closed. Staff, at this time, if you would please sound your

recommendation.
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MS. HOLMES: Case Number 2012Z-004-03. Applicant is Adel

Kazough. Location is 1304 Willingham Drive. Request is for a

rezoning from R1A to C1. Staff recommendation is denial.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, at this time, you've

heard the Staff's recommendation. I will entertain a motion for this

Case Number and remember that because it is a rezoning, please

state your recommendation -- please state your motion in the form of

a recommendation.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to make a

motion that -- Chairman, I'd like to make a motion that Case Number

2012Z-004-03 be rezoned from R1A to C1.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. And that would be a

recommendation Commissioner Mallory, as it is a rezoning. Is that

correct?

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So Commissioner Mallory

has made a motion to recommend, in essence, approval for Case

Number 2012 "Z" as in zebra-004-03 from R1A to C1 at 1304

Willingham Drive. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved and

properly seconded. It's moved by Commissioner Mallory, seconded

by Commissioner Wares. Is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I have some questions.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioner Tucker.
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COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Kazough you bought that

property back -- you didn't in addition know that that had been

rezoned, was not commercial property?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: No, sir. I bought it with the

intent and with the notion that the seller --

MS. HOLMES: Mr. Kazough, you have to speak directly into

the microphone.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: All right. I bought the property

with the notion that the property is commercial property because a

company called M&M Heating and Air had the property and when the

guy passed away, I bought the property from the bank. It went into

foreclosure and I bought it from the bank.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Okay.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: And I just wanted to mention

something. The power is on at the property. It's all commercial.

The gas is commercial. The light is commercial. They will not allow

me to turn the power on as residential. They will not allow me to

turn the gas on as commercial -- as residential. So I'm paying

commercial rate at that property right now as we speak.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Can you describe to me the

structure itself, what's it composed of --

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Well, I would say the structure

is about this room size.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: And the materials the big building

is made of?
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APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Bricks --

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Bricks.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: -- and a metal roof.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Uh-uh. Okay.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: It's got a big old package unit

on the top air-conditioner.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Please speak into the microphone.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: It's built like a commercial --

small commercial building.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Okay.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: It got a garage door on the side

where you can let up and down.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Okay. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any other discussion?

COMMISSIONER WARES: Yes, Mr. Chair. My question is,

'um, to the applicant. You said you sort of had a tenant there.

There's someone that's -- there's a billboard or something where

someone has been paying for the use of this space anyway? Would

you explain that.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Yeah, 'um, I do have a contract

from the previous owner that CBS is renting this thing but I think

they got a contract on it for probably two more years. I inherited the

contract from CBS Outdoor.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay. And it's a billboard?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Yes, I mean, it's a huge
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billboard. You got four signs, big old signs -- I'm talking probably like

it's four kind of signs. It's a big old billboard.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay. For two more years?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Yeah, two more years.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any other discussion?

COMMISSIONER RENE: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Rene.

COMMISSIONER RENE: Mr. Adel, what would you do to

enhance or beautify that -- to soften the blow in the neighborhood. I

guess to soften the look of commercial property?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Like, 'um, Mr. Fisher had

previously said that he do designing and Staff. He a contractor and

he design a wooden fence, a 6-foot wooden fence, 'um, real nice and

be painted real nice, for me to fence the whole property and addition

that I'm trying to plant some plants in the front that would at least

block the neighbors, the residential part of the property. I mean,

something real nice.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any other discussion?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: (Nods head for yes.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: 'Um, this is for Staff. Ms.

Holmes, it's my understanding that this property was rezoned earlier.

Was it a part of the Egan Park earlier and that this then has been

operating as a none conforming use -- a proper none conforming use
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in that rezoned area. Is that correct?

MS. HOLMES: The parcel on which the property is located

was purchased by the developer of the Egan Park subdivision there

on Pennsylvania because he wanted to extend the subdivision out to

Willingham. As we all know, the housing industry went belly up and

he was not able to complete those plans but the property is still

zoned R1A. From the record that we have in our office, there was no

business activity, no HBHC Company existing there at that site for

one year or more and as you know, our none conforming policy says

once the use ceases for twelve months, it must conform for current

regulations.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: All right. And, 'um -- let me see

what was my other question. I guess that's it. Thank you very

much.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Excuse me. I have a

question.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay, Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: You said that was not gonna

be invasive, that it would not be a night-time business. Like what

type of hours would you have? What is the latest that it would be

open for your trucks to, I guess, return in the evening? Will they be

returning?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: No. The truck -- my service

technician take these trucks home. They drive a van. It's basically a

van, a service van and they come in the morning, get their parts and
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call sheet and they gone for the day.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: So they don't come back in

the evening at all?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: They gone --

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: So it's just the two

receptionist people?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Exactly.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: And what would be their

latest hours?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: Huh, probably the most 5:30, 6

o'clock.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Okay.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: 'Um, I mean, I'm usually the

first person in and the last person so probably I'll be at the office

doing paperwork basically. It's not like activities like working or

anything there, no.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Okay. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Mr. Kazough, if you would, can

you speak -- I'm familiar with the area and directly across from your

front -- your main gate, it's an area there that's just, you know, it

looks -- it looks bad.

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: It is. It's a creek run right in it.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Is it -- could you or would you be

willing to work with the community as far as a beautification or some
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idea toward beautification of that area as well?

APPLICANT ADEL KAZOUGH: I'm sure because that's the

reason -- that's the reason why I'm saying that I'm gonna put a fence

down there and I'm gonna clean out the reservoir on it so that the

water will flow because outside of learning that when it rains, that

place get flooded up a little bit. So I would personally try to clean

that drainage for me to have water flow instead of water sitting on

the property or coming into my building, into my offices and stuff.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Before I call on another

Commissioner, if another Commissioner would like to speak, I would

just like to bring up one point. Mr. Fisher, in your comments you

stated that if Mr. Kazough abandons the property then, 'um, I'm

assuming what you're meaning that if the rezoning is not granted

and, 'um, he leaves, you know, decides to go some place else, then

there be overgrowth, I just wanted to point out that as long as he is

the property owner whether he decides to put a business there or

move there, if this is not granted, he would still, as the property

owner, have obligations to keeping the property up or be subject to

code violation.

MR. FISHER: Correct. And my intention in that statement

was that if this wasn't granted and he had to move on and resell the

property -- would be abandoned for potentially some time until a new

owner came in but as we all know as long as he owns the property,

he is subject to maintenance on the facility. That was not my

intention.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you.

MR. FISHER: Uh-uh.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there any other discussion?

AUDIENCE: I have a question.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: You can't ask questions. The

public hearing is closed and so, 'um, the applicant gets an

opportunity to rebut. Now, if a Commissioner would like to ask a

question of one of the speakers they would have the right to do that

but at this point, the public hearing is now closed and so a

Commissioner would have to ask a specific question to one of the

speakers in order for you to approach the podium. Commissioner

Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I have a serious concern about

this and that is that we worked really hard to develop a

Comprehensive Plan that includes rezoning this area to R1A and that

since it has been abandoned for over a year, that if we began to

backtrack, then we undo the potential for this property to be

developed the way we have intended it to be developed.

(Audience claps.)

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: So I am in opposition to

recommend approval of this particular application and I'm sorry that

there wasn't enough information in advance for this gentleman to

understand the complications and I may not be in the majority at this

point but I am real concerned that we have some redevelopment that

is relatively new redevelopment and we may undermine that
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redevelopment by -- I am also not convinced that we have anything

in place to enforce any kind of beautification plan for this property.

Is there anything that we can do? Is there a condition that we can

place?

MS. HOLMES: The applicant would have to meet Chapter 6,

the Landscaping and Tree Ordinance and there's a buffer

requirement between residential and commercial that is required for,

I believe, about 15-feet.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: So this would happen during

Plan Review for the development --

MS. HOLMES: He would have to have them prior to him

getting a C.O.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: So there is at least some

opportunity for that to occur.

MS. HOLMES: Yes.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: 'Um, that's just my story and I'm

sticking to it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Question for Staff. We would not

be able to enforce that on a parcel of property. I don't know exactly

where the property -- the piece that you're talking about,

Commissioner Mallory, but if it's not a part of the property that is

owned by the applicant, then we would not be able to enforce that,

correct?

MS. HOLMES: That's correct. I believe Mr. -- Commissioner

Mallory is speaking about the trench that runs just in front of the
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property or --

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Across the street.

MS. HOLMES: Across the street? No, we will not be able to

enforce the parcel.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: I see. So I just wanted to be clear

about that so we would not have any layer -- any method of

enforcing any type of beautification agreement, as it may sound

great and wonderful. We do appreciate that but this Body would not

have the authority to enforce that or to require that, 'um, either as a

condition, 'um for this application or any other application because

it's not a part of the property that, 'um -- okay. Is there any other

discussion?

COMMISSIONER WARES: Mr. Chair, just to be clear. Are we

saying this is -- well, we haven't voted yet but whatever it is that we

come up with that we deciding on, it's still just a recommendation but

the City Council really has the final say.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: And I'll just clarify that just a little

bit. So if you would recall once Commissioner Mallory made his

motion, I just want to clarify with his motion as it relates to rezoning

applications for the City of East Point. Staff has a recommendation

and then it comes to this Body and we also have a recommendation.

Because it's a rezoning, it will then move onto City Council and the

City Council will then have the final vote on it so the Council gets
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Staff's recommendation. It would also get our recommendation and

then it will be voted on finally at the City Council. Are there any

other questions?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any other discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, there's a motion

and a second. The motion on the floor is to approve Case Number

2012 "Z" as in zebra-004-03. It has been moved and properly

seconded. All in favor, at this time, if there's no more discussion,

please sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed, please sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: Nay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Sounds like the nays have

it. This Body will make a recommendation for denial to City Council,

Case Number 2012 "Z" as in zebra-004-03, 1304 Willingham Drive, a

rezoning from R1A --

MS. HOLMES: I'm sorry Commissioner. That motion dies. If

you would like to make a recommendation for denial, another motion

would have to be proposed.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So the motion dies and as

clarified by Staff, there will be no recommendation to Council. There

was a motion to approve. So at this point, I will entertain a motion

for denial. That's what we have to do.
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COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I make a motion that we

recommend denial for Case Number 2012Z-004-03, at 1304

Willingham Drive.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon that we recommend denial for Case Number 2012 "Z" as in

zebra-004-03 and it has been seconded by Commissioner Tucker.

'Um, is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Yes, there's discussion and I

hear what everyone is saying in, you know -- when you -- if you're

familiar with the area and you look around the area, what the

gentleman is, you know -- from what I'm understanding he's trying to

do --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Uh-uh.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: -- it would seem to me that it

only fit what he's trying to do.

(Audience Outburst.) No.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: -- the area, the building, the --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Please, I'm sorry. I'm sorry,

Commissioner Mallory. Please, no outburst, please. Thank you.

MS. HOLMES: I'm sorry, Commissioner Mallory. Can you
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speak directly into the microphone, please.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: It would seem to me that what

this gentleman is trying to do, huh, when you look at the area, the

building, the, 'um -- and listen to the idea, 'um, it, it -- to me, it really

seem as though it would fit perfectly, huh, considering all for sides of

the property, 'um, such as the east side, as well as the west side,

'um, and the north side, most definitely. The issue, I would think,

would just be the south side and, huh, I just think it's a wonderful.

(Audience Outburst.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: I'm sorry. No outburst. We have

a process and we've had a public hearing and so we really must

adhere to it and so --

(Audience Outburst.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: But he has a vote, sir and it could

be your opinion that he's wrong and so that's why we have a

Commission so we will take up the motion and we will vote on it.

Please, no outburst.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are you finish Commissioner

Mallory?

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Yeah, yeah, I'm finish but that's

all I really wanted to say. I think it's right. I think it's a right, huh --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Wake up.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. All right. Is there any other

discussion?
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COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any other discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Seeing no more discussion,

the motion on the floor, Commissioners, is to recommend denial for

Case Number 2012 "Z" as in zebra-004-03, location 1304 Willingham

Drive, rezoning from R1A to C1. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: Nay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. I think that there are two

nays; is that correct?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Wares, you have a

nay and Commissioner Mallory is a nay and all the others ayes?

COMMISSIONERS: (Nods head for yes.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So this motion passes so we

will, 'um, recommend denial to City Council for this zoning case.

Thank you. The next Agenda Item is 2012 "U" as in under-001-02.

At this time, we will open the public hearing for this Agenda Item.

Commissioners, I will entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I make a motion to open a hearing

on Case Number 2012U-001-02.
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COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Tucker and seconded by Commissioner Wares that we open up the

public hearing for Case Number 2012 "U" as in under-001-02. All in

favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now open. Applicant, would you please

approach the podium and your full name and current address.

(Whereupon Applicant Alphonzo McDonald approaches the

podium.)

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Alphonzo McDonald.

744 Wood Bend Court, Riverdale, Georgia 30296. 'Um, I'm Pastor

Alphonzo McDonald. I'm the Paster of New Beginning Family Center

International Ministries. 'Um, I've stayed here in the City of East

Point for ten years. I'm very familiar with the City. I went to

Tri-Cities High School. Very, very, very uplifting strong church

membership that I have and, 'um, we have out grown the stay that

we're in now. I'm very familiar with the City of East Point. I'm

definitely looking to move in the City of East Point and fellowship with

this community and, 'um, just bring some insight into this community

and move forward with our growth in what we're doing for New

Beginnings International Ministries.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. McDonald.

Are there any other proponents for this Case Number?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any other proponents?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, are there any

opponents for this Case Number?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any opponents for this Case

Number?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, Commissioners, at

this time, I will entertain a motion to close the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Mr. Bryant has made a motion to

close the public hearing. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been seconded by

Commissioners Wares. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the public hearing is

now closed. Staff, would you please sound your recommendation.

MS. HOLMES: Case Number 2012U-001-02. Applicant is
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Alphonzo McDonald. Location is 2473 Delowe Drive. Applicant is

seeking a Special Use Permit for a church, temple or place or

worship. Staff's recommendation is approval.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, you've heard Mr.

McDonald in his presentation. You've also heard Staff's

recommendation. At this time, I will entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I would like to make a motion to

approve.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Tucker and seconded by Commissioner Wares we approve Case

Number 2012 "U" as in under-001-02. Is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Just a couple of questions.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Uh-uh.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: 'Um, Reverend McDonald, how

many members do you have of your congregation approximately?

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Currently right now, we

have about forty (40) to forty-five (45).

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Forty (40) to (45)?

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Yes, sir.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: And do you know approximately

how many the capacity for the facility that your seeking?

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: I believe the capacity

for the facility that we are, 'um, having now is, 'um, I want to say a

hundred --

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: A hundred.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: -- max.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: All right. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Pastor McDonald.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: I was by your place last Friday --

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: -- and I notice you all are at work.

I noticed some people you had working around the place and I was

wondering with the capacity that you have now, do you know any

intentions of enlarging or having more people because I was just

thinking about the parking --

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Right.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: -- because you have a screen

where they make T-shirts next door --

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Right, right.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: -- 'um, then you have a

barbershop and, of course, the supermarket is closed now so I didn't

know what were your intentions on getting more people at your
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church.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Oh, yeah. I looked at

that myself, too. I think because we, 'um -- since they've last closed

now, I believe that will give us more parking area, more parking

room. I'm very familiar with the area. I use to work at the

barbershop over there so, 'um, I know those guys pretty well and

also around the back of the building, there's parking area, too. So I

think it will be pretty --

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: And around in the back they use

to play basketball and all that kind of stuff.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Right yeah.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: But I commend you -- the rest of

your idea and with your church starting with the young people.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Being positive.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Thank you so much.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Uh-uh.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I have one question.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Yes, ma'am.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Maybe more for Staff. Is there

adequate lighting there for the activities that we anticipate with a

Youth Ministry? Is that something we need to --

MS. HOLMES: No, actually our Public Utilities Department is a

part of the application process and they have not noted any problems

with lighting.
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COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay. I just wanted to make

sure. That's the only one. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any other questions or

any other discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, the motion

on the floor is approval. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

This motion is -- this particular case is approved. Thank you, Pastor

McDonald.

APPLICANT ALPHONZO MCDONALD: Thank you so much.

Thank you all.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, at this time,

we will move to announcements and we did have one special

presentation at the beginning of the meet but I also have one other

announcement.

IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: At the last meeting, we were

joined by our newest Commissioner, Commissioner Karen Rene and I

failed to welcome Commissioner Rene to the Commission and I

wanted to make sure that I had the opportunity to do that today so

Commissioner Rene, we welcome you to the East Point Planning &

Zoning Commission. We look forward to your service and we're glad
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to have you.

(The Commissioners applaud.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Staff, are there any

announcements that you would like to make?

MS. HOLMES: The Department of Planning & Zoning will be

hosting a Planning and Development 101 series. There will be one

hosted in each one of the wards, two (2) Tuesdays and (2)

Thursdays in the month of May. You should have received a copy of

our publicity flyer announcing these development series and a

number of them were forwarded to each of the neighborhood

association presidents as well as there is information on our Website

and you can always contact our office. We will be doing a plan and

development serious what will discuss development here in the City

of East Point as well as we'll have an energy official who will continue

our focus this year on making their home more energy efficient and

to get every one out. We will be giving away prizes in the like of

those that we gave away at our energy fair and there will be a grand

prize at each one of the events.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, are there

any other announcement?

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Commissioners, I would just like

to invite -- well, next year. I just got back. I've been gone all week.

I was down at the Fort Valley State University. We had a

Motivational Task Force Workshop, where we had people from all

over Georgia and the Country coming down to talk with the young
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people about life, about how to apply for jobs and next year, I would

just like to invite all of you to just come down to speak with the

young people. It's a three-day seminar and we just have a good

time in talking and speaking with the young people at the University

and I would certainly like to invite you all down to be a part of that

and if you would like to be a part of that, please see me and we'll get

you down next year with us. We have a real good time and I think

you'll thoroughly enjoy it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you, Dr. Bryant. Are there

any other announcements?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair, I just wanted to wish

Regina Carter. She's out. I mean, we all miss her and we pray that

she gets well and gets back to us soon.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, we all do. Ms. Holmes isn't

treating us so well. Regina, if you're watching, we want you to come

back real soon. Commissioners, are there any other announcements.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, at this time, I will

entertain a motion to adjourn.

X. ADJOURNMENT:

COMMISSIONER WARES: Mr. Chair, so moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Dr. Wares -- Commissioner

Wares has made a motion to adjourn. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: -- and it's been seconded by
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Commissioner Sheldon. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed say nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, this meeting is now

adjourned. Thank you.

(Whereupon this concludes the City of East Point Planning &

Zoning Commission meeting for April 19th, 2012.)
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